
A copy of the agenda and supplemental 
materials will be available for viewing or 
download at: www. SaltonSea.com/meetings 

AGENDA:   
DATE:  
LOCATION: 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Thursday, November 16, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. 
Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians 
Tameka Gymnasium 
66725 Martinez Road 
Thermal, CA 92274 

The Following Salton Sea Authority Directors will be attending via video/teleconference from: 

Director Thomas Tortez, Jr. 
Torres Martinez Desert 
Cahuilla Indians 
859 Convention Center Blvd 
New Orleans, LA 70130 

To view the meeting live please see the meeting login information at: 

http://www.SaltonSea.com/meetings 

I. CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL 
LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This Public Comments time is reserved for comments on any non-action agenda item and 
for matters not on the agenda. California law prohibits members of the Board from taking 
action on matters not on the agenda. 
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any matter within the 
Authority’s jurisdiction and are invited to speak to any specific action item in the agenda 
at the time it is called. All non-action agenda items should be addressed during this 
general public comment period. 

When you speak, state your name for the record, and please address all comments 
to the Chairwoman. Remarks shall be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes. 

If attending in person, complete a “request to speak” form and give it to the Clerk of the 
Board.. 
To request to speak remotely, use Zoom’s “raised hand” feature, or by phone press *9 to 
be acknowledged. 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 1 of 124 November 16, 2023

http://www.saltonsea.com/meetings


Comments may be emailed to info@saltonsea.com (include in your subject line “Public 
Comment,11/16/2023 SSA board meeting”) or delivered by hand or mailed to 82995 
Highway 111, Suite 200, Indio, California, “Attn: Clerk of the Board, Salton Sea 
Authority”. 
All written comments should include your name, address (addresses will be redacted), 
and whether it is for general public comment or a specific agenda item (provide number 
and topic).  Comments received in writing, either by email or written, will be distributed 
to the Board, posted on the Salton Sea Authority website for public review and, if 
received before noon on Wednesday, November 15, will be acknowledged during 
public comments.  Written comments will be included in the public record but not be read 
aloud. 
 

III. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS   

This is a time set aside for members of the Board to share their thoughts and concerns 
regarding general Authority matters not on the agenda, ask questions of staff, and request 
that items be added to a future agenda.   
The Brown Act expressly prohibits lengthy Board Member discussion of matters not on 
the agenda. The Board may at its discretion (by 4/5 vote) add items deemed to be an 
emergency to the agenda to engage in public discourse. 

 
 

IV. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION  

A. CONSENT CALENDAR – Approve, Receive, and File 
1. Minutes of Salton Sea Authority Board Meeting October 19, 2023 
2. Salton Sea Authority Warrant Register Ratification for October 31, 2023 
3. Salton Sea Authority Internal Financial Report for:  7/01/2022 – 09/30/2023 
 

B. Desert Shores Project Update – Introduction of Gafcon, Inc. and ratification of 
Consulting agreement dated October 24, 2023. 

 
C. Imperial Streams and Salton Sea Ecosystem Restoration Feasibility Study update 

(USACE Representative), approve or ratify “3x3x3 Exemption Request Letter of 
Support from the Non-Federal Sponsors”, and take other action as appropriate. 
 

D. Outreach, Engagement and Education progress report - Staff 
 
E. Monitoring, Mitigation, and Accountability – update on efforts to provide assurance 

of health and safety – Staff 
 
 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 2 of 124 November 16, 2023



V. REPORTS  

 
(Due to the Special Program, no oral reports will be provided) 

 

A. Federal  
1. Federal Activities – Lisa Moore Lehman, Partner, Cultivating Conservation 
2. US Bureau of Reclamation – No Report 

B. State  
1. State Advocacy Report – Oracio Gonzalez, Principal, Ollin Strategies 
2. State of California – Mr. Miguel Hernandez, Public Affairs Officer, California 

Natural Resources Agency 
3. Salton Sea State Recreation Area Update on Activities – Andrew Ahlberg, Interim 

District Superintendent, California State Parks 
C. Local  

1. Salton Sea Action Committee – Alan Pace, SSAC President 
D. Executive Director’s Report and Comments - G. Patrick O’Dowd, Executive 

Director/GM, Salton Sea Authority 

VI. SPECIAL PROGRAM  

 
A. Salton Sea Authority – 30th Anniversary Commemoration. 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT  

 
NEXT MEETING TIME & LOCATION:  

The Salton Sea Authority board is scheduled to meet on:  
Thursday, December 7 at 10:00a.m. 

Coachella Valley Water District 
Steve Robbins Administrative Building 

75515 Hovley Lane East 
Palm Desert, CA 92260 

760-398-2651 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Any public record, relating to an open session agenda item, that is distributed within 72 hours prior to the meeting is available for 
public inspection in the lobby at the front desk of the County Law Building located at 82995 Highway 111, Indio, CA  92201. 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 3 of 124 November 16, 2023



 
 

OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
SALTON SEA AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  
October 19, 2023 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER  

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Salton Sea Authority (“Authority”) Board of 
Directors (“Board”) was called to order by Altrena Santillanes, President, at 10:00 a.m., 
October 19, 2023, at the North Shore Beach & Yacht Club, and via Zoom Webinar. 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   Led By President Santillanes 
ROLL CALL:   

DIRECTORS PRESENT ON SITE AGENCY 
Altrena Santillanes, President Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians  
Gina Dockstader, Secretary Imperial Irrigation District  
Cástulo R. Estrada, Vice-President Coachella Valley Water District 
Ex-Officio Samantha Arthur CNRA 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT VIA ZOOM AGENCY 
Luis A. Plancarte, Director Imperial County 
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT  AGENCY 
John Aguilar, Director Coachella Valley Water District 
Ryan E. Kelley, Director Imperial County 
Thomas Tortez, Director  Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians 
V. Manuel Perez, Director Riverside County 
Yxstian Gutierrez, Treasurer Riverside County 
Alex Cárdenas, Director Imperial Irrigation District  
 
SALTON SEA AUTHORITY STAFF PRESENT 
G. Patrick O’Dowd, Executive Director/GM (in person) 
Carlos Campos, Best Best & Krieger, Legal Counsel (in person) 
Bob Hargreaves, Best Best & Krieger, Legal Counsel (Via Zoom) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 4 of 124 November 16, 2023



MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC PRESENT 
On Site: Miguel Hernandez, CNRA, Juan DeLara, SSAC, Chuck Tobin, Burrtec and 
Frank Ruiz of Audubon. 
Via Zoom:  Jessica, Humes, IID, Mario Llanos, CNRA, Stephanie Holstege, Senior 
Environmental Scientist, Specialist, SWRCB, Jamie Asbury, General Manager, IID and 
28 others. 

II.  PUBLIC COMMENTS   

There were no public comments. 
 

Secretary Dockstader attended the 2nd Annual Salton Sea Stroll at Bombay Beach and 
was pleased with the event. She also requested an IID presentation be added to the next 
agendaregarding well and vegetation projects. 

 
III. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION  

A. CONSENT CALENDAR – Approve, Receive, and File 
1. Minutes of Salton Sea Authority Board Meeting September 21, 2023 
2. Salton Sea Authority Warrant Register Ratification for September 30, 2023 
3. Salton Sea Authority Internal Financial Report for:  7/01/2022 – 08/31/2023 
4. Approval 2024 Salton Sea Authority Board Meeting Calendar. 
 
On motion by Dockstader second by Plancarte, the Board approved the Consent 
Calendar to be received, and filed. 
 
Approved by the following vote: 
AYES: President Santillanes, Vice-President Estrada, Secretary Dockstader and 
Director Plancarte 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Directors Kelley, Tortez, Aguilar, Perez and Gutierrez 
ABSTAINED: None 
MOTION PASSED: 7 – 0* 
 
*In keeping with the Salton Sea Authority Bylaws, a single director carries the vote of 
both directors of the agency when the second director of the same agency is absent.  
 

B. Presentation – Brian McNeece gave a presentation on the New River and the Tijuana 
River. 
 
Vice-President Estrada thanked Dr. McNeece for the presentation and sharing data on 
the New River and Tijuana River, expressed concerns of inaction by Mexico in 
addressing these infrastructure problems. It was also mentioned that there could be 
significant reductions in flows from Mexico from growth in the Mexicali Valley. 
 

III. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 5 of 124 November 16, 2023



C. Update on Community Engagement, Outreach and Education - G. Patrick O’Dowd 
introduced Israel Cruz, who will be the Authority’s new Director of Outreach, 
Engagement & Education.  
 
Mr. Cruz thanked Patrick for the introduction, he is a resident of Imperial Valley and 
is excited and honored to serve his community at this capacity.  
 

D. Project Updates 
a. North Lake Demonstration Pilot Project 

Executive Director/GM, G. Patrick O’Dowd introduced Chuck Greely of Dudek 
who provided an update on the geotechnical work that is starting this week.  
 
In response to Vice-President Estrada’s question regarding the project team make-
up, GM O’Dowd advised Riverside County is the implementing agency, Douglas 
Ordonez serves as project manager and Juan Perez, COO of the county has taken 
a strong leadership role. Albert Webb serves as Riverside County’s technical 
advisor. 
 

b. Desert Shores, G. Patrick O’Dowd gave a brief but positive update. The Authority 
has drafted a contract with Gafcon that has been reviewed and expected to be 
signed shorty for consulting services oversee the CEQA process and help develop 
a comprehensive project scope, a precursor to a larger contract for construction 
management services. The State and the Bureau of Reclamation have been great 
partners and are reviewing a proposal for an expanded scope of work. 
 
Vice President Estrada asked if they have determined to drill wells. GM O’Dowd 
responded that they will be drilling a test well to determine the quality and the 
water availability and will spec a production well once that process has been 
finalized. They are also testing seepage of the lake. 
 
Tom Sephton provided alternate estimates for well drilling. He also provided 
information on 2 wells which could potentially provide useful data. 
 
Ron Spears expressed his support for the Gafcon selection and offered that the 
Association could serve as the conduit between Gafcon and the residents. 
 
Jasmyn Phillips expressed a desire to explore use of CVWD wells for project 
purposes, with potential cost savings. 

 

IV. REPORTS  

A. Federal  
1. Federal Activities – Lisa Moore Lehman, Partner, Cultivating Conservation spoke 

about the passing of Senator Feinstein and the impact she had. A written report 
was also provided. 

2. US Bureau of Reclamation – No Report 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 6 of 124 November 16, 2023



B. State  
1. State Advocacy Report – Oracio Gonzalez, Principal, Ollin Strategies gave an 

update on SB619 (Padilla) and AB1593 (Garcia). A written report was also 
provided. 

2. State of California – Mr. Miguel Hernandez, Public Affairs Officer, California 
Natural Resources Agency gave an update on current and past events. SSMP is 
hiring, they have a position open for an Engineer with water resources. Update on 
SSMP outreach, he will be presenting at City Council meetings throughout the 
region. 

3. Salton Sea State Recreation Area Update on Activities – Andrew Ahlberg, Interim 
District Superintendent, California State Parks – No Report. 

C. Local  
1. Salton Sea Action Committee – Juan DeLara provided an update on the Bus 

Tours, UCR will be assisting the SSAC and will hopefully have one scheduled by 
next month. The SSAC is also working with UCR on the next Salton Sea 
Symposium, the projected date is October 2024. 

D. Executive Director’s Report and Comments 
1. G. Patrick O’Dowd, Executive Director/GM, Salton Sea Authority advised that 

the letter to Senator Padilla that the board discussed at the last meeting regarding 
consultation and community engagement was sent and we are continuing to 
engage with the Senator and his Staff on that and all other issues. Patrick also 
informed the Board and public that the Authority will be commemorating the 30th 
Anniversary of the Salton Sea Authority at the Torres Martinez Tribe on 
November 16. 

 
V. ADJOURNMENT  

 
  
 

NEXT MEETING TIME & LOCATION:  
The Salton Sea Authority Board is scheduled to meet on:  

Thursday, November 16, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. 
Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians Gymnasium  

66725 Martinez Road 
Thermal, CA 92274 

760-397-0300 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 7 of 124 November 16, 2023



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Any public record, relating to an open session agenda item, that is distributed within 72 hours prior to the meeting is available for 
public inspection in the lobby at the front desk of the County Law Building located at 82995 Highway 111, Indio, CA  92201. 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 8 of 124 November 16, 2023



Date Number Vendor Name Description Amount

10/10/2023 Deposit Department of Water Resources Grant reimbursment for period ended 06/23 348,390.19                

10/11/2023 EFT Pacific Western Bank Visa billing cycle ended 09/23 (2,360.31)                   

10/27/2023 1435 Bureau of Reclamation Grant adjustment for period ended 06/23 (426.92)                      

10/30/2023 ACH Cultivating Conservation Consulting fees 09/23 (7,350.00)                   

10/30/2023 ACH Best, Best & Krieger Services related to general matters 09/23 (4,209.00)                   

10/30/2023 ACH Ollin Strategies Consulting services 10/23 (7,000.00)                   

10/30/2023 ACH Bravata, Lisa Mileage 10/19/23 (49.78)                        

10/30/2023 ACH SystemGO IT LLC SystemGo IT Website 10/23 (382.00)                      

10/30/2023 ACH County of Riverside North Lake grant reimbursement for period ended 03/23 (345,882.86)               

10/30/2023 ACH G. Patrick O'Dowd Mileage 09/26/23-10/30/23 (398.90)                      

Beginning Cash Balance 228,477.24$           

Monthly Activity (19,669.58)              

Ending Cash Balance 208,807.66$           

Salton Sea Authority

Checking Account Activity

October 1, 2023 through October 31, 2023

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 9 of 124 November 16, 2023



A B C D C / D C - D

August
2023

September
2023

YTD
FY 24

 Budget
FY 24

YTD 
Target 

25%
$ Variance

1 REVENUE

2 Local Government / Member Assessments -$                 -$                 400,000$          800,000$          50% (400,000)$        

3 Other Federal / State / Local Reimbursements -                   -                   -                   25,000              0% (25,000)           

4 Sponsorships -                   -                   -                   25,000              0% (25,000)           

5 Grant and Other Reimbursements to General Fund -                   -                   -                   194,400            0% (194,400)          

6 TOTAL REVENUE -                   -                   400,000            1,044,400         38% (644,400)          

7 EXPENSES

8 SSA Administration

9 Salaries & Benefits

10 Total Salaries 15,934              15,934              46,208              309,300            15% (263,092)          

11 Total Employee Benefits 8,375                8,466                24,291              171,600            14% (147,309)          

12 Total Salaries & Benefits 24,309              24,400              70,499              480,900            15% (410,401)          

13 Contract / Professional Services

14 DC Advocates 7,350                7,350                22,050              94,200              23% (72,150)           

15 Sacramento Advocates 7,000                7,000                21,000              88,200              24% (67,200)           

16 Attorney Fees 2,982                4,209                8,468                54,000              16% (45,532)           

17 Audit & Accounting 3,807                4,346                10,646              76,200              14% (65,554)           

18 Total Contract / Professional Services 21,139              22,905              62,164              312,600            20% (250,436)          

19 Travel/Mileage 3,633                2,881                8,851                40,000              22% (31,149)           

20 Equipment / IT Maintenance 382                   382                   1,146                8,300                14% (7,154)             

21 Non-capitalized Office Equipment -                   -                   -                   8,000                0% (8,000)             

22 Insurance 944                   944                   2,833                11,600              24% (8,767)             

23 Office Expense/Operating Supplies 65                     62                     222                   8,700                3% (8,478)             

24 Office Expense/Online Services 251                   368                   1,106                4,000                28% (2,894)             

25 Dues, Subscriptions 669                   669                   2,407                10,000              24% (7,593)             

26 Operating Expenses / County Charges 428                   1,146                1,729                7,400                23% (5,671)             

27 Coachella Water District Board Room Usage Fees -                   -                   -                   2,400                0% (2,400)             

28 Interest Expense 88                     1,024                1,112                -                   N/A 1,112               

29 TOTAL EXPENSES 51,907              54,780              152,069            893,900            17% (741,831)          

30 NET INCOME / (LOSS) (51,907)$           (54,780)$           247,931$          150,500$          165% 97,431$           

Salton Sea Authority
Budget to Actual

General Fund (Unaudited)
For the Period July 1, 2023 through September 30, 2023

*No assurance is provided on these financial statements. The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all disclosures required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the U.S. are not included.

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 10 of 124 November 16, 2023



A B C D C / D C - D

August
2023

September
2023

YTD
FY 24

 Budget
FY 24

YTD 
Target 

25%
$ Variance

1 REVENUE

2 State of California Grant (Prop 68) -$                 -$                 -$                 2,000,000$       0% (2,000,000)$     

3 TOTAL REVENUE -                   -                   -                   2,000,000         0% (2,000,000)$     

4 EXPENSES

5 Salton Sea Authority Salaries -                   -                   -                   79,700              0% (79,700)            

6 Department of Water Resources-North Lake Demo 335                   173                   507                   1,920,300         0% (1,919,793)       

7 TOTAL EXPENSES 335                   173                   507                   2,000,000         0% (1,999,493)       

8 NET INCOME / (LOSS) (335)$               (173)$               (507)$               -$                 (507)$               

Salton Sea Authority
Budget to Actual

DWR - Proposition 68 Grant (Unaudited)
For the Period July 1, 2023 through September 30, 2023

*No assurance is provided on these financial statements. The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all disclosures required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the U.S. are not included.

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 11 of 124 November 16, 2023



A B C D C / D C - D

August
2023

September
2023

YTD
FY 24

 Budget
FY 24

YTD 
Target 

25%
$ Variance

1 REVENUE

2 Bureau of Reclamation Grant -$                 -$                 -$                 750,000$          0% (750,000)$        

3 TOTAL REVENUE -                   -                   -                   750,000            0% (750,000)$        

4 EXPENSES

5 Riverside County Salaries -                   -                   -                   25,000              0% (25,000)            

6 Bureau of Reclamation-Desert Shores Revitalization 557                   173                   729                   725,000            (724,271)          

7 TOTAL EXPENSES 557                   173                   729                   750,000            0% (749,271)          

8 NET INCOME / (LOSS) (557)$               (173)$               (729)$               -$                 (729)$               

Salton Sea Authority
Budget to Actual

BOR -DSR (Unaudited)
For the Period July 1, 2023 through September 30, 2023

*No assurance is provided on these financial statements. The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all disclosures required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the U.S. are not included.

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 12 of 124 November 16, 2023



1 ASSETS

2 Checking/Savings 182,827$                       

3 Prepaid Items 7,673                             

4 Grants Receivable 428,272                         

5 TOTAL ASSETS 618,772                         

6 LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE

7 LIABILITIES

8 Accounts Payable 21,067                           

9 Credit Card Payable 2,382                             

10 Accrued Payroll 12,151                           

11 Due to Imperial County 271                                

12 Due to Riverside County 414,953                         

13 Accrued Vacation 51,800                           

14 TOTAL LIABILITIES 502,624                         

15 FUND BALANCE 116,148                         

16 TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 618,772$                       

Salton Sea Authority
Balance Sheet

(Unaudited) 
As of September 30, 2023

*No assurance is provided on these financial statements. The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all disclosures required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the U.S. are not included.

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 13 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

GAFCON, Inc. 

         

  day of    , 2023, by and between the Salton 

Sea Authority, a California Joint Powers Agency  GAFCON, Inc., a California 

corporation licensed to do business within the state of California 

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY desires to retain a qualified individual, firm or business entity to 

provide Professional Project Management Services for the Restoring Habitat and Improving Air and Water 

Quality at the Salton Sea project; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT represents that it is qualified and experienced to perform the 

services; and 

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY desires to engage CONSULTANT to provide services by reason of its 

qualifications and experience for performing such services, and CONSULTANT has offered to provide the 

required services for the Project on the terms and in the manner set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual covenants, AUTHORITY and 

CONSULTANT have and hereby agree to the following:  

1. DEFINITIONS.  

1.1. Salton Sea Authority Desert 

Shores proposal dated September 6, 2023 and submitted to AUTHORITY Executive 

Director.  The Proposal is attached hereto as A  and incorporated herein this by 

reference. 

2. CONTRACT COORDINATION. 

2.1. The Executive Director or his/her designee shall be the representative of AUTHORITY 

for all purposes under this Agreement.  The  or his/her designee is 

hereby designated as the Contract Manager for AUTHORITY.  He/she shall supervise the progress and 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 14 of 124 November 16, 2023

podowd
Typewritten Text
24th

podowd
Typewritten Text
October



                                  

  SSA-202301 

2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

execution of this Agreement.  Subject to the he AUTHORITY Projects Committee review and 

recommendation, the Executive Committee shall approve the original Agreement.

2.2. CONSULTANT shall assign a single Contract Manager to have overall responsibility for 

the progress and execution of this Agreement.  Should circumstances or conditions subsequent to the 

execution of this Agreement require a substitute Contract Manager for any reason, the Contract Manager 

designee shall be subject to the prior written acceptance and approval of AUTHORITY

 

3. DESCRIPTION OF WORK. 

CONSULTANT shall provide all materials and labor to perform this Agreement consistent with the 

Proposal, as set forth in Exhibit B   In the event of a conflict amongst this Agreement and the Proposal, 

this Agreement shall take precedence over the Proposal. 

4. WORK TO BE PERFORMED BY CONSULTANT. 

4.1. CONSULTANT shall comply with all terms, conditions and requirements of the Proposal 

and this Agreement. 

4.2. CONSULTANT shall perform such other tasks as necessary and proper for the full 

performance of the obligations assumed by CONSULTANT hereunder. 

4.3. CONSULTANT shall: 

4.3.1. Procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices that 

may be necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of the services to be performed by 

CONSULTANT under this agreement; 

4.3.2. Keep itself fully informed of all existing and proposed federal, state and local laws, 

ordinances, regulations, orders and decrees which may affect those engaged or employed under this 

Agreement; 

4.3.3. At all times observe and comply with, and cause all of its employees to observe and 

comply with all of said laws, ordinances, regulations, orders and decrees mentioned above; and 

4.3.4. Immediately report to AUTHORITY

discrepancy or inconsistency it discovers in said laws, ordinances, regulations, orders and decrees 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 15 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

mentioned above in relation to any plans, drawings, specifications or provisions of this Agreement. 

5. REPRESENTATIONS BY CONSULTANT. 

5.1. CONSULTANT understands and agrees that AUTHORITY has limited knowledge in the 

multiple areas specified in the Proposal.  CONSULTANT has represented itself to be an expert in these 

fields and understands that AUTHORITY is relying upon such representation. 

5.2. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that it is a lawful entity possessing all required 

licenses and authorities to do business in the State of California and perform all aspects of this 

Agreement. 

5.3. CONSULTANT shall not commence any work under this Agreement or provide any 

other services, or materials, in connection therewith until CONSULTANT has received written 

authorization from AUTHORITY  

5.4. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that the people executing this Agreement on behalf 

of CONSULTANT have the authority of CONSULTANT to sign this Agreement and bind CONSULTANT 

to the performance of all duties and obligations assumed by CONSULTANT herein. 

5.5. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that any employee, contractor and/or agent who 

will be performing any of the duties and obligations of CONSULTANT herein possess all required licenses 

and authorities, as well as the experience and training, to perform such tasks. 

5.6. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that the allegations contained in the Proposal are 

true and correct. 

5.7. CONSULTANT understands that AUTHORITY considers the representations made 

herein to be material and would not enter into this Agreement with CONSULTANT if such 

representations were not made. 

5.8. CONSULTANT understands and agrees not to discuss this Agreement or work performed 

pursuant to this Agreement with anyone not a party to this Agreement without the prior permission of 

AUTHORITY. CONSULTANT further agrees to immediately advise AUTHORITY of any contacts or 

inquiries made by anyone not a party to this Agreement with respect to work performed pursuant to this 

Agreement.  

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 16 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

4 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

5.9. Prior to accepting any work under this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall perform a due 

diligence review of its files and advise AUTHORITY of any conflict or potential conflict 

CONSULTANT may have with respect to the work requested. 

5.10. CONSULTANT understands and agrees that in the course of performance of this 

Agreement CONSULTANT may be provided with information or data considered by the owner or the 

AUTHORITY to be confidential. AUTHORITY shall clearly identify such information and/or data as 

confidential. CONSULTANT shall take all necessary steps necessary to maintain such confidentiality 

including but not limited to restricting the dissemination of all material received to those required to 

have such data in order for CONSULTANT to perform under this Agreement. 

5.11. CONSULTANT represents that the personnel dedicated to this project as identified in 

o perform the tasks identified therein. CONSULTANT 

will not substitute other personnel or engage any contractors to work on any tasks identified herein 

without prior written notice to AUTHORITY. 

6. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 

This Agreement shall commence on the date first written above and shall remain in effect for a 

period of one (1) year, with no extensions. 

7. COMPENSATION. 

7.1. AUTHORITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT fees not to exceed amounts outlined 

in Exhibit B based on documented invoices submitted consistent with the requirements set forth in 

Financial Assistance Agreement No. R22AC00215 Between Bureau of Reclamation and Salton Sea 

Authority for Restoring Habitat and Improving Air and Water Quality at the Salton Sea 

, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit C. 

7.2. The fee for any additional services authorized by AUTHORITY will be computed upon 

rates as set forth in the Proposal.  Additional services or costs will not be paid without a prior written 

agreement between the Parties. 

7.3. Except as provided under paragraph 7.1 and 7.2, AUTHORITY shall not be responsible 

to pay CONSULTANT any compensation, out of pocket expenses, fees, reimbursement of expenses or 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 17 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

5 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

other remuneration.   

8. PAYMENT. 

8.1. CONSULTANT shall bill AUTHORITY on a time and material basis as set forth in Exhibit 

A , but not to exceed amounts outlined in   AUTHORITY shall pay CONSULTANT for 

completed and approved services upon presentation of its itemized billing in accordance with Section 9 

hereafter.   

8.2. AUTHORITY shall have the right to retain five percent (5%) of the total of amount of each 

invoice, not to exceed five percent (5%) of the total compensation amount of the completed project.  

 has been completed in accordance with this 

Agreement, as determined by AUTHORITY, and all subcontractors, if any, have been paid in full by 

CONSULTANT.  Upon completion of the Project CONSULTANT shall bill AUTHORITY the retention 

for payment by AUTHORITY.   

9. METHOD OF PAYMENT. 

CONSULTANT shall at any time prior to the fifteenth (15th) day of each April, July, October, and 

January, submit to AUTHORITY a written claim for compensation for services performed.  The claim shall 

be in a format approved by AUTHORITY and required by the GRANT.  No payment shall be made by 

AUTHORITY prior to the claims being approved in writing by AUTHORITY or 

his/her designee.  CONSULTANT may expect to receive payment within thirty (30) days after GRANT 

reimbursement is received by AUTHORITY. 

10. TIME FOR COMPLETION OF THE WORK. 

The Parties agree that time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.  Program 

scheduling shall be as described in Exhibits unless revisions are approved by both AUTHORITY

caused by AUTHORITY, other governmental agencies or factors not directly brought about by the 

negligence or lack of due care on the part of CONSULTANT. 

11. MAINTENANCE AND ACCESS OF BOOKS AND RECORDS. 

CONSULTANT shall maintain books, records, documents, reports and other materials developed 

under this Agreement as follows: 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 18 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

6 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

11.1. CONSULTANT shall maintain all ledgers, books of accounts, invoices, vouchers,    

and disbursements charged to AUTHORITY for a minimum period of three (3) years, or for any longer 

period required by law, from the date of final payment to CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement.

11.2.  CONSULTANT shall maintain all reports, documents, and records, which demonstrate 

performance under this Agreement for a minimum period of five (5) years, or for any longer period 

required by law, from the date of termination or completion of this Agreement.  

11.3. Any records or documents required to be maintained by CONSULTANT pursuant to this 

Agreement shall be made available to AUTHORITY for inspection or audit at any time during 

AUTHORITY provides CONSULTANT with 

seven (7) days advanced written or e-mail notice.  Copies of such documents shall, at no cost to 

AUTHORITY, be provided to AUTHORITY 

receipt of notices under this Agreement. 

12. SUSPENSION OF AGREEMENT. 

AUTHORITY in whole 

or in part, for such period as deemed necessary due to unfavorable conditions or to the failure on the part 

of CONSULTANT to perform any provision of this Agreement.  CONSULTANT will be paid the 

compensation due and payable to the date of suspension. 

13. TERMINATION. 

AUTHORITY retains the right to terminate this Agreement for any reason by notifying 

CONSULTANT in writing twenty (20) days prior to termination and by paying the compensation due 

and payable to the date of termination; provided, however, if this Agreement is terminated for fault of 

CONSULTANT, AUTHORITY shall be obligated to compensate CONSULTANT only for that portion 

nefit to AUTHORITY.  Said compensation is to be arrived 

at by mutual agreement between AUTHORITY and CONSULTANT; should the parties fail to agree on 

said compensation, an independent arbitrator shall be appointed and the decision of the arbitrator shall 

be binding upon the parties. 

14. INSPECTION. 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 19 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

7 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

CONSULTANT shall furnish AUTHORITY with every reasonable opportunity for 

AUTHORITY to ascertain that the services of CONSULTANT are being performed in accordance with 

the requirements and intentions of this Agreement.  All work done and materials furnished, if any, shall 

be subject to AUTHORITY

shall not relieve CONSULTANT of any of its obligations to fulfill its Agreement as prescribed. 

15. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS. 

All original drawings, videotapes, studies, sketches, computations, reports, information, data and 

other materials given to or prepared or assembled by or in the possession of CONSULTANT pursuant 

to this Agreement shall become the permanent property of AUTHORITY and shall be delivered to 

AUTHORITY upon demand, whether or not completed, and shall not be made available to any 

individual or organization without the prior written approval of AUTHORITY. 

16. INTEREST OF CONSULTANT. 

16.1. CONSULTANT covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire any 

interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of the services hereunder.   

16.2. CONSULTANT covenants that, in the performance of this Agreement, no sub-contractor 

or person having such an interest shall be employed. 

16.3. CONSULTANT certifies that no one who has or will have any financial interest under 

this Agreement is an officer or employee of AUTHORITY. 

17. INDEMNIFICATION. 

17.1. CONSULTANT agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law to indemnify, defend, 

protect and hold AUTHORITY and its representatives, officers, directors, designees, employees, 

successors and assigns harmless from any and all claims, expenses, liabilities, losses, causes of actions, 

demands, losses, penalties, attorneys  fees and costs, in law or equity, of every kind and nature 

whatsoever ligent acts and omissions or willful 

AUTHORITY, but does not include Claims that are the result of the negligence or willful misconduct of 

AUTHORITY. 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 20 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

8 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

17.2. CONSULTANT agrees to defend with counsel acceptable to AUTHORITY, indemnify 

and hold AUTHORITY harmless from all Claims, including but not limited to: 

17.2.1. Personal injury, including but not limited to bodily injury, emotional injury, 

sickness or disease or death to persons including but not limited to AUTHORITY

officers, directors, designees, employees, agents, successors and assigns, subcontractors and other third 

parties and/or damage to property of anyone (including loss of use thereof) arising out of 

contained in this Agreement, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by CONSULTANT or anyone 

for whose acts CONSULTANT may be liable; 

17.2.2. Liability arising from injuries to CONSULTANT and/or any of 

willful misconduct surrounding, any of the terms contained in this Agreement, or anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by CONSULTANT or anyone for whose acts CONSULTANT may be liable; 

17.2.3. Penalties imposed upon account of the violation of any law, order, citation, rule, 

regulation, standard, ordinance or statute caused by the negligent action or inaction, or willful 

misconduct of CONSULTANT or anyone directly or indirectly employed by CONSULTANT or anyone 

for whose acts CONSULTANT may be liable; 

17.2.4. Infringement of any patent rights which may be brought against AUTHORITY 

 

17.2.5. Any violation or infraction by CONSULTANT of any law, order, citation, rule, 

regulation, standard, ordinance or statute in any way relating to the occupational health or safety of 

employees; and 

17.2.6. Any breach by CONSULTANT of the terms, requirements or covenants of this 

Agreement. 

17.3. These indemnification provisions shall extend to Claims occurring after this Agreement 

is terminated, as well as while it is in force. 

18. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

In all situations and circumstances arising out of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 21 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

9 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

CONSULTANT is an independent contractor, and as an independent contractor, the following shall 

apply: 

18.1. CONSULTANT is not an employee or agent of AUTHORITY and is only responsible 

for the requirements and results specified by this Agreement or any other agreement. 

18.2. CONSULTANT shall be responsible to AUTHORITY only for the requirements and 

results specified by this Agreement and except as specifically provided in this Agreement, shall not be 

subject to AUTHORITY

in fulfillment of the requirements of this Agreement. 

18.3. CONSULTANT is not, and shall not be, entitled to receive from, or through, 

AUTHORITY, and AUTHORITY shall not provide, or be obligated to provide, CONSULTANT with 

Workers  Compensation coverage or any other type of employment or worker insurance or benefit 

coverage required or provided by any Federal, State or local law or regulation for, or normally afforded 

to, an employee of AUTHORITY. 

18.4. CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to have AUTHORITY withhold or pay, and 

AUTHORITY shall not withhold or pay, on behalf of CONSULTANT, any tax or money relating to the 

Social Security Old Age Pension Program, Social Security Disability Program, or any other type of 

pension, annuity, or disability program required or provided by any Federal, State or local law or 

regulation. 

18.5. CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to participate in, nor receive any benefit from, or 

make any claim against any AUTHORITY fringe program, including, but not limited to, 

AUTHORITY

type of benefit program, plan, or coverage designated for, provided to, or offered to AUTHORITY

employees. 

18.6. AUTHORITY shall not withhold or pay, on behalf of CONSULTANT, any Federal, 

State, or local tax, including, but not limited to, any personal income tax, owed by CONSULTANT. 

18.7. CONSULTANT is, and at all times during the term of this Agreement, shall represent 

and conduct itself as an independent contractor, not as an employee of AUTHORITY. 

18.8. CONSULTANT shall not have the authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of, bind 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 22 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

10 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

or obligate AUTHORITY in any way without the written consent of AUTHORITY. 

19. INSURANCE. 

19.1. CONSULTANT agrees at its own cost and expense to procure and maintain during the 

entire term of this Agreement, and any extended term, commercial general liability insurance (bodily 

tomobile liability insurance 

(bodily injury and property damage) and professional liability insurance in a sum acceptable to 

AUTHORITY and adequate to cover potential liabilities arising in connection with the performance of 

this Agreement and in any event not less than the minimum limit set forth as follows: 

Insurance Minimum Limit 

Errors & Omissions Coverage (professional 

liability  malpractice) 

One million dollars ($1,000,000.00) 

Per person, per occurrence. 

 Statutory 

 One million dollars ($1,000,000.00) 

Commercial General Liability 

(Including Contractual Liability) 

Bodily Injury 

Property Damage 

One million dollars ($1,000,000.00) 

combined single limit to any one 

two million 

dollars ($2,000,000.00) aggregate for 

any one accident, including personal 

injury, death and property damage. 

Commercial Automobile Liability 

(owned, hired & non-owned vehicles) 

 

One hundred thousand dollars 

($100,000) combined single limit and 

three hundred thousand dollars 

($300,000) aggregate, including 

owned, non-owned and hired vehicles.

19.2. Special Insurance Requirements.  All insurance required shall: 

19.2.1. Be procured from California admitted insurers (licensed to do business in 

AUTHORITY.  A rating of 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 23 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

11 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

at least A-VII shall be acceptable to AUTHORITY; lesser ratings must be approved in writing by 

AUTHORITY. 

19.2.2. Be primary coverage as respects AUTHORITY and any insurance or self-

insurance maintained by AUTHORITY 

shall not contribute to it. 

19.2.3. Name AUTHORITY and their officers, employees, and volunteers as additional 

and provide that AUTHORITY may recover for any loss suffered by AUTHORITY due to 

 

19.2.4. State that it is primary insurance and regards AUTHORITY as an additional 

insured and contains a cross-liability or severability of interest clause. 

19.2.5. Not be canceled, non-renewed or reduced in scope of coverage until after thirty 

(30) days written notice has been given to AUTHORITY.  CONSULTANT may not terminate such 

coverage until it provides AUTHORITY with proof that equal or better insurance has been secured and 

is in place. Cancellation or change without prior written consent of AUTHORITY shall, at the option of 

AUTHORITY, be grounds for termination of this Agreement.  

19.2.6. If this Agreement remains in effect more than one (1) year from the date of its 

original execution, AUTHORITY may, at its sole discretion, require an increase to liability insurance to 

the level then customary in similar AUTHORITY Agreements by giving sixty (60) days notice to 

CONSULTANT. 

19.3. Additional Insurance Requirements. 

19.3.1. AUTHORITY is to be notified immediately of all insurance claims.  

AUTHORITY is also to be notified if any aggregate insurance limit is exceeded. 

19.3.2. The comprehensive or commercial general liability shall contain a provision of 

endorsements stating that such insurance: 

a. Includes contractual liability; 

b. Does not contain any exclusions as to loss or damage to property caused by 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 24 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

12 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

explosion or resulting from collapse of buildings or structures or damage to property underground, 

c. 

to the total proportion that its policy limits bear to the total coverage available to the insured;  

d. 

insurance prior to providing coverage; 

e. Does not contain an escape clause  which extinguishes the insurer s liability if 

the loss is covered by other insurance;  

f. Includes AUTHORITY as an additional insured. 

g. States that it is primary insurance and regards AUTHORITY as an additional 

insured and contains a cross-liability or severability of interest clause. 

19.4. Deposit of Insurance Policy.  Promptly on issuance, reissuance, or renewal of any 

insurance policy required by this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall, if requested by AUTHORITY, 

provide AUTHORITY satisfactory evidence that insurance policy premiums have been paid together 

with a duplicate copy of the policy or a certificate evidencing the policy and executed by the insurance 

company issuing the policy or its authorized agent. 

19.5. Certificates of Insurance. 

CONSULTANT agrees to provide AUTHORITY with the following insurance documents on or  

before the effective date of this Agreement:  

19.5.1. Complete copies of certificates of insurance for all required coverages including  

additional insured endorsements shall be attached hereto as D  and incorporated herein.

19.5.2. The documents enumerated in this Paragraph shall be sent to the following: 
 
Salton Sea Authority 
Attention: Executive Director 
82995 Highway 111 
Suite 200 
Indio CA  92201 

19.6. Additional Insurance.  Nothing in this, or any other provision of this Agreement, shall be 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 25 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

13 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

construed to preclude CONSULTANT from obtaining and maintaining any additional insurance policies 

in addition to those required pursuant to this Agreement. 

20. COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION. 

20.1. Prior to the commencement of work, CONTRACTOR shall sign and file with 

AUTHORITY 

or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with 

 

20.2. This certification is included in this Agreement and signature of the Agreement shall 

constitute signing and filing of the certificate. 

20.3. CONSULTANT understands and agrees that any and all employees, regardless of hire 

work on the Project.  

20.4. If CONSULTANT has no employees, initial here:  __________. 

21. ASSIGNMENT. 

Neither this Agreement nor any duties or obligations hereunder shall be assignable by 

CONSULTANT without the prior written consent of AUTHORITY.  CONSULTANT may employ other 

specialists to perform services as required with prior approval by AUTHORITY. 

22. NON-DISCRIMINATION. 

During the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT and its subcontractors shall not 

unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment 

because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV 

and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (cancer), age (over forty (40)), marital status and denial 

of family care leave.  CONSULTANT and its subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and 

treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 

harassment.  CONSULTANT and its subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair 

Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 

promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, §7285 et seq.).  The applicable 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 26 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

14 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code §12990 

(a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are 

incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full.  The 

applicable regulations of §504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. §794 (a)) are incorporated 

into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full.  CONSULTANT and its 

subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with 

which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement.   CONSULTANT shall include the 

nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under 

this Agreement. 

23. NOTICES AND REPORTS. 

23.1. Any notice and reports under this Agreement shall be in writing and may be given by 

personal delivery or by mailing by certified mail, addressed as follows: 

AUTHORITY    CONSULTANT 

Salton Sea Authority  GAFCON, Inc. 
Attention: Executive Director   10301 Meanley Drive, Suite 225 
82995 Highway 111    San Diego, CA 92131 
Suite 200 
Indio CA  92201  
       

23.2. Notice shall be deemed to have been delivered only upon receipt by the Party, seventy-

two (72) hours after deposit in the United States mail or twenty-four (24) hours after deposit with an 

overnight carrier.   

23.3. The addressees and addresses for purposes of this paragraph may be changed to any other 

addressee and address by giving written notice of such change.  Unless and until written notice of change 

of addressee and/or address is delivered in the manner provided in this paragraph, the addressee and 

address set forth in this Agreement shall continue in effect for all purposes hereunder. 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between COUNTY and CONSULTANT relating 

to the transactions contemplated hereby and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous agreements, 

understandings, provisions, negotiations, representations, or statements, either written or oral. 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 27 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

15 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

25. MODIFICATION. 

No modification, waiver, amendment, discharge, or change of this Agreement shall be valid 

unless the same is in writing and signed by both Parties. 

26. CAPTIONS. 

Captions in this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and do not define, 

describe or limit the scope or the intent of this Agreement or any of the terms thereof. 

27. PARTIAL INVALIDITY. 

If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, 

or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force without being 

impaired or invalidated in any way. 

28. GENDER AND INTERPRETATION OF TERMS AND PROVISIONS. 

As used in this Agreement and whenever required by the context thereof, each number, both 

singular and plural, shall include all numbers, and each gender shall include a gender.  CONSULTANT 

as used in this Agreement or in any other document referred to in or made a part of this Agreement shall 

likewise include the singular and the plural, a corporation, a partnership, individual, firm or person acting 

in any fiduciary capacity as executor, administrator, trustee or in any other representative capacity or 

any other entity.  All covenants herein contained on the part of CONSULTANT shall be joint and several 

if more than one person, firm or entity executes the Agreement. 

29. WAIVER. 

No Waiver of any breach or of any of the covenants or conditions of this Agreement shall be 

construed to be a waiver of any other breach or to be a consent to any further or succeeding breach of 

the same or any other covenant or condition. 

30. CHOICE OF LAW. 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  This Agreement is 

made and entered into in Imperial County, California.  Any action brought by either party with respect 

to this agreement shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction within said County. 

31. AUTHORITY. 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 28 of 124 November 16, 2023



                                  

  SSA-202301 

16 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

31.1. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT represents and 

warrants that: 

31.1.1. He/She is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of 

CONSULTANT; 

31.1.2. Such execution and delivery is in accordance with the terms of the Articles of 

Incorporation or Partnership, any by-laws or Resolutions of CONSULTANT and; 

31.1.3. This Agreement is binding upon CONSULTANT accordance with its terms. 

31.2. CONSULTANT shall deliver to AUTHORITY evidence acceptable to AUTHORITY of 

the foregoing within thirty (30) days of execution of this Agreement. 

32. COUNTERPARTS. 

This Agreement (as well as any amendments hereto) may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which when executed shall be an original, and all of which together shall constitute 

one and the same Agreement.  No counterparts shall be effective until all Parties have executed a 

counterpart hereof. 

33. REVIEW OF AGREEMENT TERMS. 

33.1. Each Party has received independent legal advice from its attorneys with respect to the 

advisability of making the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements provided for herein, 

and with respect to the advisability of executing this Agreement. 

33.2. Each Party represents and warrants to and covenants with the other Party that:  

33.2.1. This Agreement in its reduction to final written form is a result of extensive good 

faith negotiations between the Parties and/or their respective legal counsel; 

33.2.2. The Parties and their legal counsel have carefully reviewed and examined this 

Agreement for execution by said Parties; and 

33.3. Any statute or rule of construction that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting 

party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement. 

34. NON-APPROPRIATION. 

This Agreement is based upon the availability of public funding.  In the event that public funds 

are unavailable and not appropriated for the performance of the services set forth in this Agreement, the 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 29 of 124 November 16, 2023



SSA-202301

17

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Agreement shall be terminated without penalty after written notice to CONSULTANT of the 

unavailability and/or non-appropriation of funds.

///

///

///

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year first 

above written.

Salton Sea Authority GAFCON Inc.

By:_________________________________ By:_________________________________
Robin Duveen

Executive Director Co-Chief Executive Officer

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 30 of 124 November 16, 2023



EXHIBIT

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 31 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 32 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 33 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 34 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 35 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 36 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 37 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 38 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 39 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 40 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 41 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 42 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 43 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 44 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 45 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 46 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 47 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 48 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 49 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 50 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 51 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 52 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 53 of 124 November 16, 2023



E
X

H
IB

IT
 B

T
as

k
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
T

im
el

in
e 

(O
ct

 1
 s

ta
rt

 d
at

e)
1.

In
iti

al
 3

-4
 h

ou
r 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 4
 G

af
co

n 
te

am
m

em
be

rs
$3

,0
00

O
ct

 1
5 

–
O

ct
 3

0

2.
Fa

ci
lit

at
e 

al
ig

nm
en

t 
of

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
ng

 in
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
ch

ar
te

r 
dr

af
tin

g
$5

,0
00

 t
o 

$7
,5

00
O

ct
 1

5 
–

N
ov

 1
4

3.
D

ra
ft

 in
g 

of
 t

he
 a

gr
ee

d-
up

on
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

ha
rt

er
 a

nd
le

ad
 f

ol
lo

w
-u

p 
m

ee
tin

g
$3

,5
00

 
N

ov
 3

0 

4.
Cr

ea
te

 in
g 

an
 e

st
im

at
ed

 b
ud

ge
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

fu
ll 

D
es

er
t

Sh
or

es
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ith
 k

ey
 m

ile
st

on
es

 a
nd

 t
im

el
in

es
$3

,0
00

 t
o 

$6
,0

00
 

D
ec

 1
5 

5.
Ac

t 
in

g
as

 c
oo

rd
in

at
or

 o
f 

CE
Q

A 
an

d 
N

EP
A 

fo
r 

a 
15

0-
da

y 
pe

rio
d

$5
,0

00
 t

o 
$7

,0
00

O
ct

 1
5 

–
M

ar
 1

3,
 2

02
4 

(1
50

 d
ay

s)
6.

D
ev

el
op

 s
co

pe
 a

nd
 b

ud
ge

t 
fo

r
Ph

as
e 

II
 p

ro
je

ct
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oj
ec

t 
co

m
pl

et
io

n
$2

,5
00

Ja
n 

15

To
ta

l 
$2

2,
00

0 
to

 $
29

,5
00

 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 54 of 124 November 16, 2023



02/28/2022

11/01/2021 12/31/2025

11/01/2021 12/31/2025

Restoring Habitat and Improving Air and Water Quality at the Salton Sea

1,539.00

1,062.00

2,601.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

52,177.00

1,250,000.00

0.00

1,250,000.00

0.00

1,250,000.00

0.00

0.00

2

3

4

See next page

15.571 - Salton Sea Program

  Johnathan  Mcdannell 

82995 US HIGHWAY 111 STE 200 

INDIO, CA 92201-5678 

Phone: 760-863-2695

Salton Sea Authority 

82995 US Highway 111 STE 200 

Indio, CA 92201-5678

Mr. G. Patrick  O'Dowd 

82995 US Highway 111 Ste 200 

Indio, CA 92201-5678 

Phone: 760-863-2695

Ms. Leslie  Dieguez 

P.O. Box 61470 

LCB-10101 

Acquisition and Assistance Management Office 

Boulder City, NV 89006 

Phone: 702-293-8369

1,250,000.00

361113707840071372151

Cooperative Agreement

1,195,222.00

1,250,000.00

6

7

Leslie Dieguez, Grants Management Specialist 

P.O. Box 61470 

LCB-10101 

Boulder City, NV 89006 

Phone: 702-293-8369

GRANTS MANAGEMENT OFFICIAL:

5

1,250,000.00

R22AC00215-00

R22AC00215 New

Other

2

1 0051018833-00010

0051018833-00020

$224,778.00

$1,025,222.00

11/01/2021

11/01/2021

12/31/2025

12/31/2025 0680

0680

Construction

Mitigation & Revitalization Services

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 55 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 56 of 124 November 16, 2023



AWARD ATTACHMENTS

SALTON SEA AUTHORITY R22AC00215-00

Agreement Template1.

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 57 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 58 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 59 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 60 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 61 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 62 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 63 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 64 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 65 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 66 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 67 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 68 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 69 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 70 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 71 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 72 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 73 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 74 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 75 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 76 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 77 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 78 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 79 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 80 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 81 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 82 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 83 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 84 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 85 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 86 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 87 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 88 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 89 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 90 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 91 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 92 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 93 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 94 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 95 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 96 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 97 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 98 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 99 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 100 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 101 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 102 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 103 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 104 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 105 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 106 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 107 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 108 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 109 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 110 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 111 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 112 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 113 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 114 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 115 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 116 of 124 November 16, 2023



November 9, 2023 
 
Andrew Baker 
Colonel, U.S. Army 
District Commander and Engineer 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Los Angeles District (SPL) 
915 Wilshire Blvd, Suite 1109 
Los Angeles, CA 90017 
 
Subject: Imperial Streams and Salton Sea Ecosystem Restoration Feasibility Study, Imperial 
and Riverside Counties, California – 3x3x3 Exemption Request Letter of Support from the Non-
Federal Sponsors 
 
Dear COL Baker, 
 
The purpose of this letter is to provide the 3x3x3 Exemption Request Letter of Support for the 
Imperial Streams and Salton Sea Ecosystem Restoration Feasibility Study from the two non-
Federal sponsors, the Salton Sea Authority and the California Department of Water Resources. 
 
Salton Sea Authority and the California Department of Water Resources have reviewed the 
3x3x3 exemption request and are in full support of the Course of Action 2. We are prepared to 
amend the Feasibility Cost Share Agreement accordingly and we are actively engaged with the 
study’s congressional delegation to relay our support and the importance of this request, 
 
We appreciate SPL’s partnership and commitment to the completion of this feasibility study. We 
look forward to continuing to work with you and your staff. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
________________________   ________________________ 
G. Patrick O’Dowd     James Newcomb 
Executive Director     Salton Sea Management Program Lead 
Salton Sea Authority     California Department of Water Resources 
 
 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 117 of 124 November 16, 2023



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 
 P.O. BOX 942836 

 SACRAMENTO, CA  94236-0001 

 (916) 653-5791 

 

 
 

LETTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES AND THE SALTON SEA 
AUTHORITY FOR COLLABORATION AND COOPERATION FOR THE IMPERIAL STREAMS SALTON SEA AND 

TRIBUTARIES FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

This Letter Agreement is entered into this __________ day of December, 2022, by the California Department of 
Water Resources (hereinafter the “DWR”) and the Salton Sea Authority (hereinafter the “Authority”), regarding the 
manner of their collaboration and cooperation for implementation of the Imperial Streams Salton Sea and 
Tributaries Feasibility Study Agreement between the Department of the Army (hereinafter the “Government”), the 
DWR, and the Authority executed on December 16, 2022 (hereinafter the “Agreement”).  
 
Background:  
 
Pursuant to a resolution of the U.S. Senate Committee on Environmental and Public Works, 114th Congress, 2nd 
Session (April 28, 2016), the Government is authorized to investigate and recommend improvements for flood risk 
management, ecosystem restoration, and other water and land related resources for the Salton Sea and the 
vicinity.  Activities and tasks required to identify and evaluate alternatives and prepare a decision document that, 
as appropriate, recommends a coordinated and implementable solution for ecosystem restoration and public 
health and safety at the Salton Sea and vicinity have been identified in the Agreement, and hereinafter, as the 
“Study”.   
 
DWR and the Authority have agreed to be local co-sponsors of the Study and are referred to collectively herein and 
in the Agreement as the “Non-Federal Sponsors”.  
 
Through this Letter Agreement, the DWR and the Authority intend to establish the manner in which they will 
collaborate on the Study with regard to cost sharing and decision making. 
 
Cost Sharing: 
 
Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, study costs incurred by the Government and Non-Federal Sponsors after 
the effective date of the Agreement will be shared.  The Non-Federal Sponsors will contribute fifty percent of the 
study costs, including by creditable in-kind contributions, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the 
Agreement.  
 
Pursuant to this Letter Agreement, the full amount of such funding for the fifty percent cost share shall be 
provided to the Government by DWR through payment of funds and provision of creditable in-kind contributions. 
 
Structured Decision Making Process: 
 
The Assistant Deputy Director for Salton Sea and the Executive Director/General Manager for the Authority will 
consult and endeavor to come to an agreement on all matters relevant to their obligations as Non-Federal 
Sponsors in the Agreement and the scope of alternatives to be analyzed, the selected plan, and the project to be 
recommended for construction.  If there is no concurrence between them, within fourteen calendar days the 
Executive Director shall present the State’s position to the Authority’s Board of Directors (the Board) for decision. 
Within that fourteen day period the Board will accept, reject, or propose modifications to the State’s position.  If 
the Board rejects the State’s position or proposes modifications, the Assistant Deputy Director for Salton Sea can 
decide to accept the Board’s rejection or proposed modification, or promptly refer the matter to the Secretary of 
Natural Resources for resolution.  The Secretary’s decision shall be delivered to the Board within fourteen calendar 
days following referral.  
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 043B2525-B806-4945-86DD-B5CC6A781296

13th

DocuSign Envelope ID: 094154C6-824F-4CDB-A802-188E1A9030F8

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 118 of 124 November 16, 2023



Counterparts:   
 
This Letter Agreement may be signed in two or more counterparts each of which, when executed and delivered, 
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one instrument, with the same force and effect as 
though all signatures appeared on a single document. 
 
 
 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF     SALTON SEA AUTHORITY 
WATER RESOURCES  
 
  
 
_____________________________________  ________________________________ 
James Newcomb      G. Patrick O’Dowd 
Assistant Deputy Director for Salton Sea   Executive Director/General Manager, Salton Sea 
       Authority 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 043B2525-B806-4945-86DD-B5CC6A781296DocuSign Envelope ID: 094154C6-824F-4CDB-A802-188E1A9030F8

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 119 of 124 November 16, 2023



Salton Sea Authority 

 
Memorandum 
To: Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors 
From: Israel Cruz, Director of Outreach, Engagement & Education   
Date: November 16, 2023 
 
Re: Recent Activities regarding community outreach and engagement. 
 
Public Events and Presentations 
Over the past month, we have actively participated in various public events and forums, 
where we had the opportunity to present the Salton Sea Authority's history, mission, 
and ongoing initiatives. These include an Environmental Justice Summit hosted by 
Comite Civico del Valle, where Executive Director O’Dowd highlighted the important 
work under way including the Army Corps Feasibility Study. It was also a privilege to 
participate in San Diego County Water Authority’s celebration of the 20th anniversary of 
the QSA. 
 
Partnership with CNRA 
The agreement, scope of work, and expectations between CNRA and SSA were 
discussed with Miguel Hernandez, CNRA. We continue to explore ways to implement 
(and possibly expand) the agreement for the benefit of work being done around the 
Sea. 
 
Planning Committee for Bus Tour 
We are actively involved in the planning committee for an upcoming bus tour to the 
Salton Sea. This collaborative effort includes key partners such as Audubon, CNRA, and 
other stakeholders. The initial bus tour, scheduled for December. The collaborative 
effort is planning several additional bus tours for the months January through 
December, to a variety of targeted stakeholders. 
 
Identifying Additional Partners 
We are proactively engaging with community leaders and potential partners to broaden 
our outreach network. This includes outreach to local organizations, businesses, and 
others. 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 120 of 124 November 16, 2023



 
Health Assurance Plan 1 of 3 11/16/23 

Salton Sea Authority 
 

Memorandum 
 

To: Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors 
From: G. Patrick O’Dowd, Executive Director /GM   
Date: November 16, 2023 
 
Re: Health Assurance Plan 
 
Over the past several months, the Authority has delved deeply into the changes taking 
place at the Sea and how they are affecting human health.  Presentations from Dr. Lo, 
Comite Civico del Valle, and most recently a conversation with Dr. Brian McNeece, all 
highlight current and looming risks associated with the “known unknowns” which are 
and will continue to impact every man, woman and child in the region. Indeed, changes 
have been taking place at the Sea ever since most recent filling and initial designation 
as an agricultural sump, but those changes are occurring at an accelerated rate due a 
variety of both natural and man-made causes. For at least a generation and likely 
longer there is a lingering fear in the region that those changes are also contributing to 
adverse health impacts to the residents of the region. And while direct correlation to the 
Sea from elevated incidents of nosebleeds and childhood asthma have not been 
established, anecdotal evidence suggests a linkage.  But the truth is, we just don’t 
know. This year we celebrated the 20th anniversary of the Quantification Settlement 
Agreement’s signing. As part and parcel of that agreement, the State of California 
agreed to restore the Sea and assume mitigation responsibility in excess of certain 
liabilities established within that agreement being addressed by the “QSA-JPA”. And 
while there exist numerous efforts to evaluate this risk at the margins, there remains no 
independent resource that the community can rely upon to know with certainty that the 
changes now taking place at the Sea are not adversely affecting their health. After 20 
years that should be viewed by all as unacceptable. 
 
To be clear, there already exists extensive monitoring throughout the region.  Work is 
being done by Imperial County Air Pollution Control District, South Coast Air Quality 
Management District, the California Air Resources Board, as well as work being 
performed under contract with the Imperial Irrigation District as part the QSA-JPA 
responsibilities, the Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians, and Comite Civico del 
Valle, and likely others not mentioned. All contribute to a data gathering effort which 
should be useful in informing mitigation strategies to ensure public health.  But to our 
knowledge that information is not used on a consolidated basis to specifically address 
sea-related health impacts. Rather, the data gathering is more regional in nature, and 
also includes potential contributors to health risks not directly related to the Sea. It will 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 121 of 124 November 16, 2023



 
Health Assurance Plan 2 of 3 11/16/23 

always be difficult to identify discreet health risks throughout the region resulting from 
other localized sources, including off road activity, trans-border influences, and ag and 
industrial contributors.  But as it relates to the Sea proper and the changes occurring 
within the historic shoreline, those risks are knowable, and after 20 years of effort 
should already be known.  And to the extent that those factors are negatively impacting 
human health, they should likewise already be mitigated.  Most residents if asked would 
likely say they just don’t know and have little confidence that in fact those risks are fully 
known and are being responsibly mitigated. 
 
Authority staff has for some months been researching and exploring possible strategies 
to address this glaring deficiency in public trust. In November of 2022, the State 
published the “Salton Sea Monitoring Implementation Plan”, which contains five goals: 
 

(1) Identify and prioritize monitoring activities that will measure current 
and future conditions within the Salton Sea ecosystem (including 
created impoundments, emerging wetlands on the playa, and 
managed habitats). 

(2) Establish milestones against which the data gathered during long-term 
monitoring can be compared. 

(3) Establish methods for measuring and reporting these metrics. 
(4) Identify and prioritize filling of existing data gaps. 
(5) Describe a framework to store, manage, and make monitoring data 

publicly available in a timely manner. 
 
The MIP provides that in conjunction therewith, an annual study plan will be developed 
that tiers off the MIP, which defines the following year’s monitoring activities, 
coordinate efforts among implementing partners, and refine sampling methods and/or 
locations as appropriate.  
 
Although no such plan was developed for 2023, we were recently notified that the State 
has initiated development of the 2024 monitoring work plan.  However, it is critically 
important to note that this plan is simply a monitoring plan, not a plan of or strategy for 
mitigation. That work is being done variously by the QSA-JPA pursuant to their 
responsibilities, and by the State in accordance with its obligations under the Water 
Board order or otherwise. And while significant strides continue to be made on both 
fronts, mitigation is not being comprehensively achieved. And even if the mandated 
mitigation measures were being fully and timely implemented, it is still not known to 
any degree of certainty how and whether the changes taking place at the Sea would 
still be affecting human health.  Dr. Lo highlighted that concern in his presentation to 
the Authority on microbial toxins, and legislation was authored last session by 
Assemblymember Garcia (AB 827) to facilitate a better understanding of that concern. 
 
We believe that Dr. Lo’s work and pursuit represents but one part of a larger lack of 
knowledge and understanding to which every community member is justly due. After 20 
years of implementing the QSA (and now approaching 100 years of the Sea being 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 122 of 124 November 16, 2023



 
Health Assurance Plan 3 of 3 11/16/23 

formally designated a sump) the lack of certainty whether the changes now taking 
place at the Sea are harmful to human health is simply unacceptable. 
 
To address this urgent deficiency, the Authority has elevated discussions with our 
elected representatives around possible legislation which would create such assurance 
framework. To accomplish that it will be necessary, through the MIP or otherwise, 
analyze the data specifically from the perspective of human health, and identify data 
gaps which limit our ability to provide such assurance. In an earlier memo we discussed 
the Owens Lake model of assurance, where air quality within the “regulatory shoreline” 
is monitored every day through 127 monitoring stations, and satellite imagery is 
updated every 5 days to ensure coverage of exposed playa (and the failure on the part 
of LADWP to do so could result in significant financial penalties). When our community 
can be provided that level of assurance, they will know that they are safe.  They have a 
right to know that, and we should be about the business of providing it. 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Board direction requested. 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 123 of 124 November 16, 2023



 
 
 
TO:  Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors  

FROM:  Oracio Gonzalez, Ollin Strategies  

DATE:  November 2023 

SUBJECT:  California State Advocacy   

 
This memorandum provides a summary of state legislative and fiscal developments related to the 
Authority’s state advocacy.    
 
As of the writing of this memo, Senate and Assembly leadership have not released the updated 
membership for policy and budget committees.  As noted in last month’s memo, with the 
election of Assemblymember Robert Rivas as Speaker of the Assembly, and the selection of 
Senator Mark McGuire as Senate President designee, it is anticipated most if not all committees 
will have new chairs and members next year.  
 
The Authority remains keenly focused on changes to the leadership of committees with 
jurisdiction over the Salton Sea, including the Assembly Water Parks and Wildlife Committee, 
the Assembly Natural Resources Committee, the Assembly Budget Subcommittee 3 Climate 
Crisis, Resources, Energy, and Transportation, the Senate Natural Resources Committee and 
Senate Budget Subcommittee 2 on Resources, Environmental Protection and Energy.  
 
From a fiscal perspective, the state finances continue to face uncertainty going into next year 
with most analyst predicting a significant budget deficit.   The uncertainty was compounded by 
the Internal Revenue Service’s extension of the tax filing deadline to November 16, 2023 for 
virtually all California tax payers.  Historically, November would have seen a flurry of reports 
from the state discussing what policy makers could expect the state’s finances to look like going 
into next year, but those reports have mostly been postponed to December.   That said, initial 
indicators are suggesting a slowdown in the economy and a projected deficit of approximately 
$15 billion.  
 
The Governor will formally announce his proposed budget on January 10, 2024, a week after the 
legislature reconvenes on January 3, 2024.  
 

Salton Sea Authority Board of Directors Page 124 of 124 November 16, 2023


	1.pdf
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	0
	V. REPORTS
	(Due to the Special Program, no oral reports will be provided)
	A. Federal
	VI. SPECIAL PROGRAM
	A. Salton Sea Authority – 30th Anniversary Commemoration.

	2.pdf
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	0
	IV. REPORTS
	A. Federal

	3.pdf
	4.pdf
	5.pdf
	7.pdf
	8.pdf
	DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES

	9.pdf
	10.pdf
	11.pdf



